
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
Paul Casey 

City Administrator 
 Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Gregg Hart 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Jason Dominguez 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Cathy Murillo 
 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 

 
November 15, 2016 

AGENDA 
 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need auxiliary aids or services or staff assistance to attend or participate 
in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s Office at 564-5305.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will usually enable the City to make reasonable arrangements. Specialized services, such as sign language 
interpretation or documents in Braille, may require additional lead time to arrange. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.santabarbaraca.gov/citytv for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee 
meetings, and for any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/citytv


11/15/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
 
 

AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 
 
1. Subject:  Proclamation Honoring Women's Economic Ventures 25th 

Anniversary (120.04) 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meeting of November 1, 2016. 



11/15/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Adoption of Oversized Vehicle Parking Ordinance (550.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending The Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code By Adding Section 10.44.220 With Respect To Oversized Vehicle Parking, 
Amending Section 10.44.200 To Eliminate The Term "Temporary Recreational 
Vehicle," And Repealing Section 10.44.205 Pertaining To Recreational Vehicle 
Parking. 
  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Updates To Water Metering 
Requirements And Clarifying Requirements For Individual Metering 
(540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapters 14.04 and 14.08, Updating and Clarifying Water Metering 
Requirements; Adding Existing Water Metering Requirements Previously 
Located In Chapter 22.04. 
  

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For On-Bill-Financing Agreement With 
Southern California Edison For Outdoor Lighting At Cater Water Treatment 
Plant (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving and Authorizing the Public 
Works Director to Execute an On-Bill-Financing Agreement with Southern 
California Edison for Outdoor Lighting at the Cater Water Treatment Plant for a 
term Not to Exceed Ten Years. 
  

6. Subject:   Amendment To The Rules And Regulations For The Protection 
And Enhancement Of Solar Access  (630.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution Of 
The Council Of The City Of Santa Barbara Amending Resolution No. 98-027 
Pertaining To The Rules And Regulations For The Protection And Enhancement 
Of Solar Access In The City Of Santa Barbara. 

 



11/15/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

7. Subject:  Acceptance Of Water Meter Agreement And Easement For 3885 
State Street (540.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving an Agreement for Access to 
Water Meters and Sub-meters, and Accepting a Grant of Easement for 3885 
State Street. 
  

8. Subject:  Contract For Design Of Upper State Street Wet Weather Sewer 
Capacity Project (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 

Services contract with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., in the amount of 
$242,081 for design services of the State Street Sewer Improvements 
Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures 
of up to $24,208 for extra services of Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

B. Approve and increase in appropriations Wastewater Fund and 
Wastewater Capital Fund in the amount of $266,289, funded from 
Wastewater Fund reserves, and authorize the transfer of such funds from 
the Wastewater Fund to the Wastewater Capital Fund to cover the cost of 
design for the Upper State Street Sewer Project. 

 

9. Subject:  Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2017 (120.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council cancel the regular Council Meetings on the 
following dates:  January 3, January 17, February 21, April 4, May 30, July 4, 
August 22, August 29, September 5, November 7, November 28, December 19, 
and December 26, 2017. 
  

NOTICES 

10. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 10, 2016, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



11/15/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

11. Subject:  Update Of Southern California Edison Resiliency Plan And The 
Santa Barbara Downtown Reliability Project (380.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive and comment on a presentation by 
Southern California Edison on their resiliency plan, including the Downtown 
Santa Barbara Reliability Project component. 
  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Permitting The Temporary Beachway Bridge Over Mission Creek 
(530.03) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council direct staff to work with California Coastal 
Commission staff to permit the temporary Beachway Bridge initially installed as 
temporary access over Mission Creek to remain after completion of the Cabrillo 
Bridge Replacement Project as a functional improvement to the multi-purpose 
path. 
  
 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT (IF NECESSARY) 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

13. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Anticipated Litigation (160.01) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider initiating 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(4) of Section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed (two potential cases). 

Scheduling: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

 



11/15/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CLOSED SESSIONS (CONT’D) 

14. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation  (160.01) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Jennifer 
McKenzie v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case #16CV03008. 

Scheduling: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report: None anticipated 

  
 

RECESS 
EVENING SESSION 

 
 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

15. Subject:  Proclamation Honoring United Boys and Girls Club Gold Star 
Students (120.04) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

16. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council hold interviews of applicants for various City 
Advisory Groups. 
     (Continued from October 15, 2016, Item No. 17 and November 1, 2016,     
      Item No. 12) 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 





11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
NOV 15 2016 #2 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 1, 2016 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (The Ordinance 
Committee met at 12:30 p.m.  The Finance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 12:30 
p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Jason Dominguez, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Paul Casey, City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne, 
Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through November 30, 2016. 
  
Documents: 
 November 1, 2016, report from the Administrative Services Director. 
 
Speakers: 
 Staff:  City Administrator Casey. 
 

(Cont’d) 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 
 

 
1.  (Cont’d) 
 
By consensus, the Council approved the recommendation, and the following employees 
were recognized: 
 

5-Year Pin 
Myndi Hegeman, Executive Assistant, Airport Department 

Diego Martin, Finance Analyst I, Finance Department 
10-Year Pin 

Phillip Faulding, Firefighter, Fire Department 
15-Year Pin 

Ruben Gutierrez, Custodian, Public Works Department 
Todd Johnson, Police Sergeant, Police Department 

20-Year Pin 
Brenda Craig, Finance Supervisor, Finance Department 

25-Year Pin 
Mark Howard, Risk Manager, Finance Department 

Michael Johnson, Water Distribution Operator/Emergency Services,  
     Public Works Department 

Anthony Prieto, Streets Maintenance Crew Leader, Public Works Department 
 
2. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring November 2016 As National Runaway 

Prevention Month (120.04) 
 
Action:  Proclamation presented to Arianna Roster and Carrie Faulkner of 
Channel Islands, Noah’s Anchorage Youth Crisis Shelter.   
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Howard Green; Jose A. Navarrete, Santa Barbara Superior Court; W. Scott 
Burns, Donate Life. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item Removed From Consent Calendar 

7. Subject:  A Resolution Denying The Appeals Of Pete Dal Bello And Of 
Jarrett Gorin And Upholding The Decision Of The Planning Commission 
Regarding Approval Of A Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective 
Dispensary At 118 N. Milpas  Street (640.07) 

(Cont’d) 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 
 

 

7. (Cont’d) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Denying the Appeals of Pete Dal Bello 
and of Jarrett Gorin and Upholding the Decision of the Planning Commission 
Granting Approval of a Medical Marijuana Storefront Collective Dispensary 
Permit at 118 North Milpas Street, pursuant to Council's direction of May 10, 
2016. 
  
Documents: 

 -  November 1, 2016, report from the City Attorney. 
 - Proposed Resolution. 

 
The title of the resolution related to the item was read. 
 
Motion:   
 Councilmembers Murillo/Hart to approve the recommendation: Resolution 

No. 16-064. 
Vote: 
 Majority roll call vote.  (Noes:  Councilmembers Dominguez, Rowse, and 

White).   
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 3 - 6, 8 - 9) 
 
The title of the ordinance related to the Consent Calendar was read. 
 
Motion: 
 Councilmember Rowse/Hotchkiss to approve the recommendations. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 

3. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of October 18, 2016. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

4. Subject:  Additional Funding For City TV Equipment Replacement Project 
(210.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations by $104,000 in the 
General Fund, General Government Program, from unappropriated General 
Fund reserves and transfer these funds into the Capital Outlay Fund for the City 
TV Equipment Replacement Project.                                                        



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 
 

   (Cont’d) 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 
 

 

4. (Cont’d) 

Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 1, 2016, report from the City 
Administrator). 

5. Subject: Appropriation Of Auto Anti-Theft Funds For Advertising And 
Special Projects (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council appropriate $75,000 in the Fiscal Year 2017 
Police Department Asset Seizure and Miscellaneous Grants Fund from available 
reserves for advertising and special auto anti-theft projects. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 1, 2016, report from the Chief 
of Police).  

6. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Neil And 
Judi Bruskin, Doing Business As Mother Stearns Candy Company (570.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
and Authorizing the Waterfront Director to Execute a Lease Agreement with Neil 
and Judi Bruskin, a Sole Proprietorship, Doing Business As Mother Stearns 
Candy Company, 219-B Stearns Wharf, Commencing Upon the Effective Date of 
the Enabling Ordinance. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation (November 1, 2016, report from the 
Waterfront Director; proposed ordinance). 

NOTICES 

8. The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 27, 2016, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

9. Receipt of communication advising of vacancy created on the Harbor 
Commission with the resignation of Stephen MacIntosh. This vacancy will be part 
of the current recruitment. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 
 

REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Rowse reported that the Ordinance Committee met to 
review amending Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapters 14.04 and 14.08, updating 
and clarifying water metering requirements; and adding existing water metering 
requirements previously located in Chapter 22.04.   



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

10. Subject:  Stage Three Drought Update And Continuation Of Discussion On 
Additional Water Use Regulations (540.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive an update on the status of the current drought, projected supply 

shortages, and continue the discussion on additional water use 
regulations;  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to amend Professional Services 
Contract No. 21700032, with Katz and Associates, Inc., for public outreach 
on water supply and drought issues, increasing the original contract by 
$52,294 for a total not to exceed of $85,389, which includes $4,754 in 
extra services of Katz and Associates, Inc., that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

C. Authorize the City Attorney to execute a Fourth Amendment to Legal 
Service Agreement No. 24,835 with Hanson Bridgett, LLP to increase the 
"Do Not Exceed Limit" from $175,000 to $200,000 related to legal service 
for ongoing Desal DBO contractual services. 

 
Documents: 

 - November 1, 2016, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 - November 1, 2016, email from Courtney Jane Miller, ASLA. 
 - November 1, 2016, email from Katie Klein. 
 - November 1, 2016, handout from Lindsey Baker, League of Woman 

Voters Santa Barbara. 
 - November 1, 2016, handout from Anna Marie Gott.  
 - November 1, 2016, handout from Councilmember Dominguez. 
 

Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Water Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark; City Arborist Tim 

Downey; Water Conservation Specialist Madeline Ward; Parks and 
Recreation Director Jill Zachary. 

 - Members of the Public:  Lindsey Baker; Anna Marie Gott; Natasha; Karen 
Martin. 

 - Water Commission:  Commissioner Dave Davis.  
 

Motion: 
 Councilmember Dominguez/White to approve the recommendations and 

direct staff to come back in a year with a plan to look at a possible AUD 
moratorium. 

 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 
 

Councilmember White withdrew his second on the motion. 
 
Motion died for lack of a second.                                                                   

(Cont’d) 
10. (Cont’d) 

 
Substitution Motion: 

Councilmember White/Rowse to approve the staff recommendations and 
direct staff to come back to Council with a recommendation that includes a 
ban on turf watering. 

Vote: 
 Unanimous voice vote.  Agreement No. 24,835.4. 

 
Recess:   
 
4:08 p.m. – 4:14 p.m. 

 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

12. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 15, 2016. 

(Estimated Time:  4:00 p.m.)  
(Continued from October 25, 2016, Item No. 17). 
 

Documents: 
October 25, 2016, report from the Administrative Services Director. 
 

Speakers: 
The following applicants were interviewed: 
 
Access Advisory Committee: 
 Nick Koonce 
Airport Commission: 

  Karen Kahn 
  Kathryn A. McGill (Kathy) 
 Architectural Board of Review: 
  David R. Watkins 

Building and Fire Code Board of Appeals: 
  Nick Koonce 
  Tariq R. Kadri 
 Community Development and Human Services Committee: 
  Ken Gates 
  Antonia Hood 
  Ashley Salvdor 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 
 

  Hector Sanchez 
 

(Cont’d) 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 
 

 
12. (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers (Cont’d): 
 Creeks Advisory Committee: 
  Kristie A. Klose 
  Jack Reed 
  Kathryn A. McGill (Kathy) 
 Library Board: 
  Susette H.H.C. Naylor 
 Neighborhood Advisory Council: 
  Hector Sanchez 
  Sally Foxen 
 Parks and Recreation Commission: 
  Kathryn A. McGill (Kathy) 
 Planning Commission: 
  June Pujo 
 Rental Housing Mediation Board: 
  Hector Sanchez 
  Richard Axilrod 
 Santa Barbara Youth Council: 
  Michelle Qin 
 Transportation and Circulation Committee: 
  David Hodges 
 Water Commission: 
   Monty Cole 
 
The Mayor stated that interviews will be held again on November 15, 2016.  

11. Subject:  Request From Mayor Schneider And Councilmember Murillo For 
Resolution In Support of Standing Rock Sioux (800.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve, by reading of title only, a Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Expressing Solidarity With The Standing 
Rock Sioux Regarding The Dakota Access Pipeline, as requested in a Memo 
from Mayor Schneider and Councilmember Murillo. 
  
Documents: 

- November 1, 2016, report from the City Administrator.  
- Proposed Resolution. 

 
Speakers: 

- Members of the Public:  Gwen Garcia; Michael Kile, Student Activist 
Network; Andrew Gabriel Pragan; Andres Gomez; Nancy Caponi; Faith 
Grace Magdalena, Support Standing Rock; Marcus Lopez; Casmali  
 

 (Cont’d) 



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 10 
 

 
11. (Cont’d) 

 
Speakers (Cont’d): 

- Lopez; Aurora Marquez; Michael Cordero; Gabriela O’Neal; Bryanne 
Burnett; Diego Cordero; Dr. Myra Miller, PhD, Mother Earth Council; 
John Johnson, Santa Barbara Museum of Natural History; Keri 
Bradford, University of Santa Barbara American Student Association. 

 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers Murillo/Schneider to approve the recommendation; 

Resolution No. 16-065. 
Vote: 
 Majority roll call vote.  (Abstention:  Councilmember Rowse; Noes:  

Councilmember Hotchkiss). 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 Councilmember Murillo reported she held office hours in the park over the weekend, 
     attended the City Affordable Housing Task Force meeting, and attended a meeting 
     with CA Concern. 

 
RECESS 
 
The Mayor recessed the meeting at 6:03 p.m. in order for the Council to reconvene in 
closed session for Agenda Item No. 13, and she stated that no reportable action is 
anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
13. Subject:  Conference With City Attorney - Pending Litigation  (160.03) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Santa 
Barbara Channelkeeper v. City of Santa Barbara, USDC Case No. CV-1103624 
JHN (AGRx) 

Scheduling: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime. 
Report: None anticipated. 

  
Documents: 
  November 1, 2016, report from the City Attorney. 
 
Time: 
  6:05 p.m. – 7:05 p.m.  



11/1/2016 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 11 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



Agenda Item No.  3 
File Code No.  550.01 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Oversized Vehicle Parking Ordinance 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Amending the Santa Barbara Municipal Code by Adding Section 10.44.220 
With Respect to Oversized Vehicle Parking, Amending Section 10.44.200 to Eliminate the 
Term “Temporary Recreational Vehicle,” and Repealing Section 10.44.205 Pertaining to 
Recreational Vehicle Parking. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Council introduced the Oversized Vehicle Parking Ordinance on October 18, 2016, 
including minor changes to the financial findings to conform them to updated information 
from the Community Development Department Housing and Human Services Division.  
Those changes are reflected in Section 1.F. 
 
The Ordinance will be effective beginning on December 16, 2016.  Enforcement will not 
begin until adequate sign posting is completed, however.  Public Works Transportation 
staff expect delivery of the requisite 276 or so signs before the end of the year, with 
installation expected to be complete by March 2017.  This process will also involve the 
removal of more than 400 existing “No RV” parking signs, as SBMC 10.44.205 is being 
repealed. 
 
Public Works Transportation staff are also developing the online temporary and 
disability parking permit processes.  The progress details on this work will be posted to 
a City webpage, along with FAQs and other important information.  Finally, staff intends 
to use windshield flyers to inform and notify oversized vehicle operators of the new law. 
 
PREPARED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Pierre Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE BY 
ADDING SECTION 10.44.220 WITH RESPECT TO 
OVERSIZED VEHICLE PARKING, AMENDING 
SECTION 10.44.200 TO ELIMINATE THE TERM 
“TEMPORARY RECREATIONAL VEHICLE,” AND 
REPEALING SECTION 10.44.205 PERTAINING 
TO RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKING 

 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

 SECTION 1.  Findings.  The City Council finds and declares as follows: 

 A. Unregulated oversized vehicle parking creates a dangerous safety 
condition and a public nuisance for Santa Barbara’s public street system which includes 
many historic, narrow, and busy streets that were laid out in the 18th and 19th centuries 
before anyone contemplated the advent of modern oversized vehicles. 

 B. Parked oversized vehicles interfere with and obstruct visual access to 
streets, traffic control signs and signals, other vehicles, pedestrians, bicycles and 
sidewalks, thereby substantially increasing the risk of collisions between vehicles, as 
well as collisions between vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians, at intersections, near 
driveways, and on all streets in the city, including curved roadway sections, narrow 
streets, busy streets, commercial districts, and neighborhood streets.  Such collisions 
lead to severe bodily injuries and property damage. 

C. Oversized vehicles create an immediate threat to the public health, safety 
and general welfare by obstructing visual access to scenic resources, including historic 
landmarks and natural resources, such as the coastal mountains, beaches, and Pacific 
Ocean. 

D. Parked or stopped oversized vehicles are frequently left with engines, 
refrigeration systems or generators running, thereby contributing to the deterioration of 
local air quality and quiet neighborhoods. 

E. The City Council is mindful of and has carefully considered the needs of 
underhoused individuals who try to live in vehicles, including oversized vehicles.  The 
City Council finds a significant distinction between the impacts of City regulations upon 
unhoused City residents who seek rest and respite on streets and sidewalks and the 
impacts of this Ordinance upon those who try to live in oversized vehicles upon City 

NOV 15 2016 #3 
(550.01) 



2 
 

streets.  Residency in an oversized vehicle parked on City streets creates serious public 
health and safety impacts that are not present when an unhoused person sleeps in 
public.  These impacts include not only the safety concerns expressed above relating to 
the size of the vehicle, but in addition problems related to waste disposal from on-board 
kitchen, bathing and toileting facilities, noise and fumes from on-board generators, and 
privacy impacts to other nearby residents arising from the proximity of the street to fixed 
residential dwelling units.  Moreover, Santa Barbara is one of the leading tourist 
destinations in the United States so that oversized vehicle residency is not solely an 
issue of the underhoused, but includes literally thousands of visiting tourists in oversized 
vehicles who come to Santa Barbara annually, and if left unregulated, would take up 
residency on City streets on a routine basis. 

F. Consistent with the City Council’s longstanding policies and current law, 
the City’s regulations against camping in public spaces are enforced only when 
sufficient shelter space is available to accommodate the person involved.  Moreover, 
the City Council has authorized the expenditure of over $1.2 million in the current fiscal 
year for temporary and emergency housing for the unhoused and homeless services, 
and over $6.37 million since 1991.  Unlike many cities, Santa Barbara’s regulations 
governing sitting and lying down on public sidewalks apply only on the most heavily 
trafficked portion of State Street, the City’s main tourist and commercial thoroughfare, 
thereby leaving ample locations for rest and respite throughout the City, including many 
parks and other public open spaces. 

G. With respect to living in vehicles, the City Council has for decades 
undertaken numerous substantial actions to provide safe off-street parking 
opportunities.  These actions include, among others, formation of and financial support 
for a City Task Force on Vehicle Dwelling in 2002 which included representatives from 
the Committee for Social Justice, Catholic Charities, recreational vehicle dwellers, as 
well as numerous neighborhood and shelter organizations; amending the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance in 2005 to allow the use of recreational vehicles as overnight 
accommodations in certain non-residential zones of the City and on church and 
nonprofit parking lots and, under some circumstances, in parking lots owned and 
operated by the City; creation of and funding a Recreational Vehicle Accommodation 
Program in 2005; limiting in 2007 the City’s recreational vehicle overnight parking 
prohibitions to the City’s beachfront areas with limited on-street parking; expanding the 
Safe Overnight RV Parking Program in 2007; funding nonprofit administration of the 
Safe Overnight RV Parking Program by the New Beginnings Counseling Center with the 
payment of over $440,000 since 2007; and, through the services of New Beginnings 
Counseling Center’s Safe Parking program, providing over 115 off-street parking 
spaces for people living in vehicles. 

H. The City Council recognizes and accepts that the City’s on-street parking 
system is subject to the rights of the disabled established under state and federal law.  
This Ordinance, therefore, includes an Oversized Vehicle Disability Parking Permit 
program which is intended to allow reasonable modifications of the City’s oversized 
vehicle restrictions in order to promote equal access for the disabled.  In addition, the 
City Council will refer this Ordinance to the City’s Access Advisory Committee, which is 



3 
 

charged with ensuring equal access for people with disabilities to the City’s programs, 
activities and services, in order to obtain recommendations on the best practices for 
implementing on-street disabled parking in the absence of state or federal technical 
guidance.         

 SECTION 2.  Chapter 10.44 of Title 10 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amending by adding Section 10.44.220 to read as follows: 

10.44.220  Restriction of Oversized Vehicle Parking. 

 A. DEFINITIONS.  The following words and phrases shall have the meaning 
set forth in this subsection: 

1.  “Bus” shall mean a bus as defined in California Vehicle Code section 233;  a 
schoolbus as defined in California Vehicle Code section 545;  a transit bus as defined in 
California Vehicle Code section 642;  a bus regulated by the Department of Motor 
Vehicles pursuant to California Vehicle Code section 34500(b);  a tour bus regulated by 
the Department of Motor Vehicles pursuant to California Vehicle Code section 34500.1 
or, a bus of a charter-party carrier with a valid permit issued pursuant to California 
Public Utilities Code section 5375. 

2.  “Oversized vehicle” means any vehicle, as that word is defined in California 
Vehicle Code section 670, or a combination of connected vehicles (including but not 
limited to trailers as defined in California Vehicle Code section 630), which exceeds 
twenty-five (25') feet in length, or eighty (80") inches in width, or eighty-two (82") inches 
in height, exclusive of such projecting lights or devices as are expressly allowed 
pursuant to the California Vehicle Code as it now exists or hereafter may be amended.  
Oversized vehicle shall not mean or include a pickup truck which is less than twenty-five 
(25') feet in length and eighty-two (82") inches in height. 

 B. RESTRICTION ON OVERSIZED VEHICLE PARKING. No person shall 
park or leave standing any oversized vehicle on any streets or portions of streets in 
areas where the Public Works Director has caused signs or markings giving adequate 
notice of the restriction to be placed, except as provided in subsection C. 

 C. EXCEPTIONS.  Subsection B. shall not apply to: 

1.  Any oversized commercial vehicle actively engaged in the loading or 
unloading of materials, supplies or goods, in the delivery of goods, wares, merchandise, 
or other materials at an adjacent business or residence for no longer than thirty (30) 
minutes; 

2.  Any inoperable oversized vehicle upon which a person is actively engaged in 
making emergency repairs, as authorized by Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 
10.44.040, for no longer than four (4) hours; 



4 
 

3.  Any vehicle belonging to or under contract with federal, state, or local 
government authorities, or a public utility, and any emergency vehicles as defined by 
California Vehicle Code section 165; 

4.  Any bus for no longer than two (2) hours, and any bus in an area specifically 
posted to allow bus parking for a prescribed time; 

5.  Any oversized vehicle properly displaying both a valid distinguishing disabled 
placard or license plate issued pursuant to the California Vehicle Code and a valid 
oversized vehicle disability parking permit issued pursuant to subsection D.; or 

6.  Any oversized vehicle that has been issued and is displaying a temporary 
oversized vehicle parking permit issued pursuant to subsection E. 

D. OVERSIZED VEHICLE DISABILITY PARKING PERMITS.  A person may 
obtain an oversized vehicle disability parking permit for a specific oversized vehicle to 
be parked at a specific location or locations if he or she demonstrates in writing to the 
satisfaction of the Public Works Director or his or her designee, on an application form 
prepared by the Public Works Director and upon payment of a fee prescribed by 
resolution of the City Council, that they meet each the following conditions: 

1.  The person owns or lawfully possesses an oversized vehicle; 

2.  The person is a permanent city resident as determined under the law of 
California; 

3.  The person possesses a distinguishing disabled placard or license plate 
properly issued pursuant to the California Vehicle Code; 

4.  The proposed parking location is necessary to provide access to a specific 
fixed residential address sited with a lawful dwelling unit at which the person resides or 
to a specific facility or facilities at which the person is employed or receives services; 

5.  The proposed parking location does not create or exacerbate a dangerous 
traffic safety condition; 

6.  The person demonstrates that by reason of the disability which warranted 
issuance of their California distinguishing placard or license plate, the oversized vehicle 
is specially equipped and necessary to accommodate the disability of the person 
seeking the permit so that a reasonable modification to the City’s on-street parking 
regulations is warranted under state and federal law. 

 Oversized vehicle disability parking permits shall be valid for so long as the 
person remains disabled, but for no longer than one year.  Permits may be renewed 
provided that the permit holder demonstrates in writing that he or she continues to meet 
the conditions of this subsection.  Oversized vehicle parking with an oversized vehicle 
disability parking permit shall be subject to all applicable parking restrictions in the 
California Vehicle Code and the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, including without 



5 
 

limitation Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 7.28 [street sweeping], Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code section 10.44.060 [72-hour parking limit], Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code section 10.44.200 [unlawful parking of trailers, mobilehomes, recreational 
vehicles, trucks and buses] and Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 10.46 [permit 
parking]. 

E. TEMPORARY OVERSIZED VEHICLE PARKING PERMITS.  A person 
may obtain a temporary oversized vehicle parking permit for a specific oversized vehicle 
if he or she demonstrates in writing to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director or his 
or her designee, on an application form prepared by the Public Works Director and upon 
payment of a fee prescribed by resolution of the City Council, that they meet each the 
following conditions: 

1.  The person owns or lawfully possesses an oversized vehicle; 

2.  The person is a permanent city resident as determined under the law of 
California that wishes to temporarily park their oversized vehicle adjacent to their 
residence; or a commercial business that wishes to do business in the city for a 
temporary period at a specific fixed residential or commercial address with the consent 
of the resident or occupant of that address; or a non-resident temporarily visiting a 
specific fixed residential address with the consent of the resident of that address; 

3.  The proposed parking location is reasonably situated to provide temporary 
access to a specific fixed residential or commercial address; 

4.  The proposed parking location does not create or exacerbate a dangerous 
traffic safety condition. 

 A temporary oversized vehicle parking permit shall be valid for no longer than 
five (5) consecutive calendar days.  Permits may be renewed for up to an additional five 
(5) days provided that the permit holder demonstrates in writing that he or she continues 
to meet the conditions of this subsection.  In no event shall temporary oversized vehicle 
parking permits be issued to a resident, commercial business, or non-resident for a total 
period in excess of ten (10) days within any consecutive ninety (90) calendar day 
period.  Oversized vehicle parking with a temporary oversized vehicle parking permit 
shall be subject to all applicable parking restrictions in the California Vehicle Code and 
the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, including without limitation Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapter 7.28 [street sweeping], Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 10.44.060 
[72-hour parking limit], Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 10.44.200 [unlawful 
parking of trailers, mobilehomes, recreational vehicles, trucks and buses] and Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 10.46 [permit parking]. 

F. NUISANCE DECLARED.  The City Council finds, determines and hereby 
declares that parking oversized vehicles in violation of this section constitutes an 
immediate threat to the public health, safety and general welfare, thereby creating a 
public nuisance.  Unlike much of Southern California which was developed following 
World War II, Santa Barbara’s street grid was established in the 18th and 19th centuries 



6 
 

at a time before modern oversized vehicles could have been contemplated.  Parked 
oversized vehicles interfere with and obstruct visual access to streets, traffic control 
signs and signals, other vehicles, pedestrians, bicycles and sidewalks, thereby 
substantially increasing the risk of collisions between vehicles, as well as collisions 
between vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians, at intersections, near driveways, and on all 
streets in the city, including curved roadway sections, narrow streets, busy streets, 
commercial districts, and neighborhood streets.  Parked oversized vehicles create an 
immediate threat to the public health, safety and general welfare by obstructing visual 
access to scenic resources, including historic landmarks and natural resources, such as 
the coastal mountains, beaches, and Pacific Ocean.  Parked or stopped oversized 
vehicles are frequently left with engines, refrigeration systems or generators running, 
thereby contributing to the deterioration of local air quality and quiet neighborhoods. 

G. RULES AND REGULATIONS.  The Public Works Director is authorized to 
promulgate and publish rules and regulations to interpret and implement this section. 

SECTION 3.  Section 10.44.200 of Chapter 44 of Title 10 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 

10.44.200 Unlawful Parking of Trailers, Mobilehomes, Recreational 
Vehicles, Trucks and Buses. 

A. STREET PARKING.  No person shall park or stand or permit to remain for 
a longer period than two (2) hours on any street or highway or public alley or on a 
parkway area between curb and sidewalk, any trailer, semi-trailer, or bus (all as defined 
in the California Vehicle Code) or any mobilehome (as defined in Title 28 of this Code), 
or any truck used primarily for business or commercial hauling and of a weight in excess 
of three quarters (3/4) ton capacity, unless such person has a written authorization from 
the Chief of Police or his delegate. 

B. OVERNIGHT PARKING.  No person shall park or stand or permit to stand 
any of the following vehicles:  1. trailer, 2. semi-trailer, 3. bus (all as defined in the 
California Vehicle Code), 4. mobilehome (as defined in Title 28 of this Code), or 5. any 
vehicle which is capable of greater than 1500 pounds (3/4 ton) cargo capacity on any 
city street between the hours of two (2:00) a.m. and six (6:00) a.m. of any day. 

C. RV OVERNIGHT PARKING RESTRICTED AREA.  No person shall park 
or stand or permit to stand any recreational vehicle (as those terms are defined in 
Section 15.16.060 of this Code) between the hours of twelve (12:00) midnight and six 
(6:00) a.m. in the following area of the City:  south of the U.S. 101 freeway, and 
between Castillo Street and the eastern boundary of the City at the Andre Clark Bird 
Refuge and Coast Village Road (as depicted on the map attached to this Chapter 
entitled “RV Overnight Parking Restricted Area, dated February 6, 2007.”)  

D. EXCEPTION.  This section shall not apply to a commercial truck (as 
established by a current registration with the state Department of Motor Vehicles): 



7 
 

1. While such truck is being loaded or unloaded and such additional time is 
reasonably required for such loading and unloading operations; or 

2. When such vehicle is parked in connection with, and in aid of, the 
performance of a service to or on a property in the block on which such vehicle is 
parked for a period reasonably necessary to complete such service. 

SECTION 4.  Santa Barbara Municipal Code section 10.44.205 is repealed. 

SECTION 5.  CEQA Findings.  This Ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
State CEQA Guidelines section 15301, minor alteration of existing public or private 
structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving 
negligible or no expansion of use, and section 15061(b)(3) which is the general rule that 
CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment and CEQA does not apply where it can be seen with certainty that 
there is no possibility that the activity may have a significant effect on the environment. 



                                                                                    1                                                                
NOV 15 2016 #4                                                                                                                                                                  

(540.01) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _________________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTERS 14.04 AND 14.08, 
UPDATING AND CLARIFYING WATER METERING 
REQUIREMENTS; ADDING EXISTING WATER 
METERING REQUIREMENTS PREVIOUSLY LOCATED IN 
CHAPTER 22.04 

WHEREAS, the requirement for separate water meters for individual dwelling units is 
presently located in Chapter 22.04 and is proposed to be removed from that Chapter;  

WHEREAS, the requirement for mandatory dedicated irrigation meters to serve 
landscaped areas of a certain size is presently located in Chapter 22.04 and is 
proposed to be removed from that Chapter;  

WHEREAS, requirements for water connections in the City of Santa Barbara is located 
in Municipal Code Chapter 14.08; and 

WHEREAS, regulatory compliance is more coherent and consistent when regulations 
concerning a subject are found in one location; 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to clarify existing water metering requirements when there 
are physical constraints to water meter installation  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 14.04 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to add 
Sections 14.04.065 and 14.04.075 to read as follows: 

14.04.065 Meter, Master 

 “Master Meter” means a City meter located upstream of one or more sub-meters that 
is used to measure the aggregate amount of water delivered to a group of customers or 
uses on the same lot or within the same project. 

14.040.075 Sub-meter 

 “Sub-meter” means a City meter located downstream from a master meter that is 
used to measure the amount of water furnished to an individual customer or use located 
on a lot, or within a project, that has multiple customers or uses where the aggregate 
amount of water served to the group of customers or uses is measured by a master 



2 
 

meter. 

SECTION 2. Sections 14.08.010, 14.08.040, 14.08.045, 14.08.050, 14.08.090, 
14.08.130, and 14.08.140 of Chapter 14.08 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code are 
amended to read as follows: 

14.08.010 New Connections to Mains - Application Required.  

 No new connection for any premises shall be made to City water mains or to City 
water system unless a written application has been properly filed with the Public Works 
Department, signed by the owner or the owner’s agent, upon forms to be furnished by 
the Public Works Department. 

14.08.040 New Connections to Mains - Determination of Meter and Service Size.  

 The size of any new meter and service and/or reduction in meter size shall be subject 
to the final determination and approval by the Director of the Public Works Department.   

 California Plumbing Code requirements, as amended by the City, will be used as a 
guide for determining the size where applicable.   

 Where insufficient information is available to determine the size from the California 
Plumbing Code, the proper size may be determined on an area basis as follows:   

 (1) Usable Land Area: Service Size:   

  10,000 square feet or less 5/8 inch by 3/4 inch 

  10,000 to 20,000 square feet 1 inch 

  20,000 to 34,000 square feet 1-1/2 inch 

  35,000 square feet and over 2 inch or larger as required 

 (2) Existing services and meters:  In cases where the flow rate of a customer’s 
demand is greater than the meter manufacturer’s recommendation, the Director may 
require the customer to have installed at the customer’s expense the appropriate size 
meter and services. 

 (3) Change in meter size for any property will not be approved without the written 
acknowledgment of the property owner. 

14.08.045 Effective Date of Revised Fees, Charges, and Rates. 

 The fees, charges, and rates referenced in this Chapter shall become effective as of 
the effective date of the most recent resolution of the City Council establishing such 



3 
 

fees, charges, and rates. 

14.08.050 New Connections to Mains and Service Relocations - Fee Schedule.   

 A. The service fees for original connections to the City water system and service 
relocations shall be set by resolution of the City Council.   

 B. In addition to the service fees provided for in §14.08.050(a), applicants for 
original connections to the City water system shall also pay a "buy in" charge as 
established by resolution of the City Council. 

14.08.090 Water Service Rates - Monthly Rates. 

 The monthly rates to be charged and collected shall be set by resolution of the City 
Council. These rates include usage charges based on the volume of water used and 
other fixed charges assessed without regard to the amount of water actually used. 

14.08.130 Meter Test - Replacing Meter. 

 Any customer may have the accuracy of the meter through which water is being 
furnished to the customer’s premises examined and tested by the City by making a 
written application therefor upon forms provided by the City. Upon receipt of such 
application, the City shall examine and test such meter. If the meter is found to register 
a quantity of water which varies from the actual quantity of water passing through it by 
more than published industry standards for metering accuracy, such meter shall be 
removed and another meter installed in lieu thereof.  If the meter is found to register a 
quantity of water which varies from the actual quantity of water passing through the 
meter by no more than published industry standards for metering accuracy, the meter 
shall remain in service and the customer shall pay a fee for the evaluation of the meter 
in an amount determined by resolution of the City Council. 

14.08.140 Placement Generally and General Treatment of Meters. 

 A. General Rule. All City meters shall be placed at the curb line of the street, 
whenever and wherever practicable, and shall be protected and maintained as a part of 
the operation of the Department. 

 B. Exceptions. If it is not practicable to place a City meter or City meters at the curb 
line of the street due to topography, the number of meters required for the project, or 
other existing uses of the right of way that conflict with the placement of the meters at 
the curb line, the Director may authorize such meter(s) to be located on private 
property, provided that: 

  1. A sub-meter located on private property shall be served by way of an 
upstream City master meter, which master meter may serve one or more sub-meters,  



4 
 

  2. A master meter shall be located at the curb line of the street,  

  3. Sub-meters shall not serve non-residential uses, including, without limitation, 
commercial and industrial spaces, irrigation, and common areas, unless the Director 
determines that there is no feasible alternative for providing service, 

  4. A single master meter shall not serve sub-meters of differing user 
classifications, as those user classifications are specified in the City Council resolution 
adopted pursuant to Section 14.08.090,      

 5. The customer shall be responsible for the cost to install master meter and the 
sub-meter(s) and to pay any applicable fees as set forth in the City Council resolution 
adopted pursuant to Section 14.08.050, 

  6. The owner of the  property being served shall  enter into a written agreement 
with the City which includes a provision or provision(s) detailing ownership of the water 
distribution and water meter infrastructure located within the City right of way and on 
private property, and 

  7. The owner of the property being served shall grant to City an easement, 
license, or right of way as approved by the Director for purposes including but not 
limited to meter reading, maintenance, and replacement, turning on or off of water 
service, installation or removal of flow restrictors, and ingress to and egress from meters 
for said purposes.  

 

SECTION 3. Sections 14.08.070 and 14.08.095 of Chapter 14.08 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code are deleted without replacement: 

14.08.070 Fees for Service Relocations. 

 Fees for City water service relocations shall be identical with those expressed in 
Section 14.08.050. 

14.08.095 Customer Service Charge.   

 In addition to all other charges imposed by this chapter, a customer service charge is 
hereby imposed and the same shall be collected in connection with all billings for water, 
without regard to actual water use, if any, at rates determined by resolution of the City 
Council. 



5 
 

 

SECTION 4. Chapter 14.08 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to add 
Sections 14.08.150, 14.08.160, 14.08.170 and 14.08.180 to read as follows: 

14.08.150 New Dwelling Units - Metering Requirements. 

 A. GENERAL RULE.  Every new dwelling unit, including condominium units, 
apartment units, and accessory dwelling units, shall be served by a separate meter.  
However, if a new accessory dwelling unit is located within a single-family residential 
zone, contained within the existing space of a single-family residence or an existing 
accessory structure, has independent exterior access from the existing residence, and 
the side and rear setbacks are sufficient for fire safety, the new accessory dwelling unit 
is not required to be served by a separate meter.   

    B. PROJECTS OF FOUR OR FEWER UNITS.  For projects adding four (4) or fewer 
new dwelling units, common area uses on the lots or parcels within the project 
including, but not limited to, irrigation, water features (pools, spas, fountains), and 
shared laundry facilities, may be served by the meter or meters measuring the water 
supplied to the dwelling units or may be served by a separate meter or meters.  For 
purposes of this subsection, if a project demolishes an existing dwelling unit and 
constructs a new dwelling unit in its place, the resulting unit shall be considered a new 
dwelling unit.   

 C. PROJECTS OF FIVE OR MORE UNITS.  For projects adding five (5) or more 
dwelling units, the meters measuring the water supplied to the interior of the dwelling 
units shall only measure the water use within the dwelling units. All other uses on the 
lots or parcels within the project, including, but not limited to, irrigation, water features 
(pools, spas, fountains), and shared laundry facilities, shall be served by one or more 
meters separate from the meters measuring the water supplied to the dwelling units. For 
purposes of this subsection, if a project demolishes an existing dwelling unit and 
constructs a new dwelling unit in its place, the resulting unit shall be considered a new 
dwelling unit. 

D.  LOW INCOME HOUSING PROJECTS. For developments in which 100% of the 
units are rental units which are affordable to very low or low income households, one 
water meter may serve six (6) residential dwelling units if the following conditions are 
met: 

(1) A covenant is recorded in the Official Records of the County of Santa Barbara 
against the title which states: (a) all of the residential units on the Real Property shall be 
rented to very low or low income households; (b) the maximum rent and the maximum 
household income of tenants shall be determined as set forth in the Affordable Housing 
Policies and Procedures Manual of the City of Santa Barbara, which is adopted by City 
Council Resolution from time to time; and (c) the maximum rent shall be controlled 
through recorded documents to assure continued affordability for a term that is 



6 
 

consistent with the City’s Affordable Housing Policies and Procedures Manual. The City 
shall be a party to the covenant; and 

 

(2) A covenant is recorded in the Official Records of the County of Santa Barbara 
against the title which states that the development has received a reduction in the 
number of water meters required because it is a project with 100% affordable units. In 
the event that the Real Property, or any portion thereof, is not or cannot be used solely 
for very low or low income rental housing, either: (i) the structure(s) shall be redesigned 
and possibly reconstructed and the number of residential units shall be reduced so that 
there is compliance with the City's water metering requirements then in effect, or (ii) the 
owner shall provide additional water meters as needed in order to comply with the City's 
water metering requirements then in effect and owner pay any applicable installation 
and/or capacity-based fees or costs associated with the additional water meters.  The 
City shall be a party to the covenant. 

14.08.160 Conversion of Dwelling Unit to Nonresidential Use. 

 If an existing dwelling unit, or a portion thereof, is converted to a nonresidential use, 
that nonresidential use shall be metered separately from any existing or proposed 
dwelling unit(s).   

14.08.170  Nonresidential Uses – Separate Metering 

 On lots or condominium units that have both residential and nonresidential uses, no 
meter serving a nonresidential use shall also serve a residential use.  No meter serving 
a nonresidential use on any lot or condominium unit shall serve a use on another lot or 
condominium unit. 

14.08.180 Multi-unit Residential and Nonresidential Uses - Irrigation Meters 

 The following requirement shall apply to multi-family residential and nonresidential 
use classifications: when a project requires new water service or upgraded water 
service and includes at least 1,000 square feet of irrigated landscaped area a separate 
City-issued irrigation meter shall be installed to measure the use of potable water for 
landscape purposes. 
 
 
SECTION 5. The provisions of this ordinance shall take effect at 12:01 a.m. on January 
1, 2017. 
 
Exceptions: 
 
Projects where the application was deemed complete prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance shall not be subject to the requirements of the newly adopted Sections 



7 
 

14.08.160 and 14.08.170 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code.  Projects that were 
deemed complete on or before December 31, 2016 shall continue to process in 
accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal Code Sections 22.04.030 and 22.04.060 as 
those sections existed on the date the project was deemed complete.   
 
Projects converting a dwelling unit to a short-term rental (hotel) that submitted a 
complete application for a planner consultation and the paid fees for such consultation 
on or before November 1, 2016 shall not be subject to the requirements of the newly 
adopted Sections 14.08.160 and 14.08.170 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code and 
shall continue to process in accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal Code Sections 
22.04.030 and 22.04.060 as those sections existed on the November 1, 2016. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN ON-BILL-
FINANCING AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA EDISON FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING AT THE 
CATER WATER TREATMENT PLANT FOR A TERM NOT 
TO EXCEED TEN YEARS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Public Works Director of the City of Santa Barbara (City) is hereby 
authorized to execute an On-Bill Financing agreement by and between Southern 
California Edison and the City for a term not to exceed ten years for the financing of 
outdoor lighting at the Cater Water Treatment Plant. 
 
 
 

NOV 15 2016 #5 
(540.01) 

 



Agenda Item No.  6 
File Code No.  630.06 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department  
 
SUBJECT: Amendment To The Rules And Regulations For The Protection And 

Enhancement Of Solar Access 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution Of The Council Of The City Of 
Santa Barbara Amending Resolution No. 98-027 Pertaining To The Rules And 
Regulations For The Protection And Enhancement Of Solar Access In The City Of 
Santa Barbara. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The City has a Solar Access Ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter 28.11) that limits the 
maximum height of residential buildings in residential zones in order to maintain solar 
access for adjacent properties.  The Solar Access Ordinance (“Ordinance”) refers to 
rules and regulations to administer and interpret the Ordinance.  The Rules and 
Regulations (“Rules”) for administering and interpreting the Ordinance must be 
approved by the City Council.  The existing Rules were approved by the City Council in 
1986 and amended in 1998.   
 
As seen in the Attachment, the Ordinance contains a formula that allows the maximum 
building height to increase as the distance between a northerly lot line and a proposed 
new building or addition increases.  In applying the Ordinance, the point of 
measurement for determining the solar height limitation has come into question.  As 
currently written, the solar height limitation measurement is taken from the base 
elevation, which is defined as “the highest point of contact of a structure with the 
adjacent ground.”  The Rules clarify that natural grade is used to determine the base 
elevation.  It has been noted by applicants that this measurement point penalizes 
properties that are at a lower grade than their northerly neighbor(s).   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Amendment To The Rules And Regulations For The Protection And Enhancement Of 
Solar Access  
November 15, 2016 
Page 2 

 

Proposed Change 
 
Staff concurs that the current language does penalize parcels that are at a lower grade 
than their northerly neighbor(s).  As part of the New Zoning Ordinance (NZO) process, 
changes will be proposed to address this problem.  However, there are a few projects 
under review that are affected by the current Rules, and the applicants have requested 
that the Rules be amended in advance of the NZO.   
 
Therefore, staff is proposing to amend the Rules by allowing the grade at the northerly 
lot line to be used as an alternative measurement location.  Staff is also proposing to 
replace the term “natural grade” with “existing grade” because natural grade is not 
defined in our Zoning Ordinance, whereas existing grade is defined.  In practice, staff 
considers natural grade and existing grade to be the same. 
 
In summary, the proposed change to the Rules would allow the maximum building 
height measurement to be taken from the northerly property line, thereby not penalizing 
the lot for being at a lower grade than its northerly neighbor(s). 
 
Environmental Review 
 
Staff has determined that the project qualifies for an exemption from further 
environmental review under Section 15305 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines and the City’s list of Categorically Exempt Projects, which allow for 
Minor Alterations in Land Use Limitations that do not result in any changes in land use 
or density and that have no potential for significant environmental effects. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The Solar Access Ordinance was adopted with the goal of promoting the use of 
renewable energy resources, including solar energy.  It was intended to provide a 
balance between solar rights and development rights.  The proposed revision to the 
Rules and Regulations implementing this Ordinance does not change this goal, but 
rather serves to provide more equity in its application relative to sloped parcels and/or 
parcels at a lower grade than their northerly neighbor(s).   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Solar Measurement Example  
 
PREPARED BY: Allison De Busk, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: George Buell, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Northerly Neighbor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 

Northerly Property Line 

30o angle 

Base Elevation Point 

Existing Maximum 
Building Height 
(House Does NOT 
Comply) 

Existing Grade

Existing Point of 
Measurement 

PROPOSED RULES OF MEASUREMENT 

SOLAR ACCESS BUILDING HEIGHT 

Proposed 
Point of 
Measurement 

30o angle 

12 or 18 
feet* 

12 or 18 
feet* 

Proposed Maximum 
Building Height 
(House Complies) 

* 12 feet in single-family zones, 18 feet in multi-family zones 



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING RESOLUTION 
NO. 98-027 PERTAINING TO THE RULES AND 
REGULATIONS FOR THE PROTECTION AND 
ENHANCEMENT OF SOLAR ACCESS IN THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA 

 
 
WHEREAS, on October 7, 1986 the City adopted Ordinance 4426 pertaining to 
the Protection and Enhancement of Solar Access;  
 
WHEREAS, on October 7, 1986 the City also adopted Resolution No. 86-189 
Establishing Rules and Regulations Pertaining to the Protection and 
Enhancement of Solar Access in the City of Santa Barbara; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 31, 1998 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 98-027 
amending the Rules and Regulations for the Protection and Enhancement of 
Solar Access in the City of Santa Barbara. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
SECTION 1.  Pursuant to Section 28.11.040 of the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code, the attached Rules and Regulations Pertaining to the Protection and 
Enhancement of Solar Access dated October 7, 1986, as initially amended on 
March 31, 1998, are hereby further amended. 
 
SECTION 2.  These Rules and Regulations, as amended, shall be effective 
immediately upon adoption. 
 
 



1 
 

 

RULES AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO THE 
PROTECTION AND ENHANCEMENT OF SOLAR ACCESS IN 

THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ADOPTED OCTOBER 7, 1986 
 

AS AMENDED MARCH 31, 1998 AND _______, 2016 
(CHANGES SHOWN IN STRIKEOUT AND UNDERLINE) 

 
(Attachment to Resolution 16-_____) 

 
1. Authority 

These rules and regulations are promulgated and approved pursuant to 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.11.040. 

2. Policy for Protection and Enhancement of Solar Access 

a. GOALS.  It is the goal of the City to promote the use of 
renewable energy resources, including solar energy.  Since the 
present and future applications of solar energy are well suited to 
the needs of the residential sector, the City Council adopted 
Ordinance No. 4426 on October 7, 1986.  The intent of the 
ordinance is to: 

i. Establish height limitations for structures constructed 
hereafter in a residential zone so as to provide a 
balance between solar rights and development rights.  
The Municipal Code contains a formula that allows the 
maximum building height to increase in relation to the 
distance from a northerly lot line (SBMC §28.11.020). 

ii. Allow the Community Development Department to 
establish rules and regulations regarding administration 
and interpretation of the Municipal Code Sections related 
to solar access, subject to City Council approval. 

It is not the intent of the ordinance to reduce the allowable number 
of units on any lot, nor to discourage the development of 
affordable housing. It is not the intent of the ordinance to establish 
height limitations on vegetation, because existing state law on 
this subject is considered adequate for the time being. Neither is it 
the intent of the ordinance to consider shadows cast by vegetation 

ATTACHMENT 



2 
 

as a permanent shading source. Therefore, a structure shall not be 
granted relief from the height limitations on the grounds that its 
shadow falls within those cast by existing vegetation. 

b. POLICY.  The Community Development Director shall pursue a 
policy of: 
i. Enforcing the height limitation contained in SBMC 

§28.11.20; and 
ii. Facilitating the granting of appropriate modifications. 

3. Compliance with Height Limitations 
a. HEIGHT LIMITATIONS.  The allowable height of any point on a 

structure in a residential zone is set forth in §28.11.020 of the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code.  The Community Development 
Director may, at any time prior to or during construction, require 
calculations demonstrating compliance with such limitations.  
The height limitations is related to the distance from a northerly 
lot line, which is defined so as to include any lot line facing 
within 40 degrees of north.  The intention of this definition is to 
include both the northwest and northeast lot line on a lot that is 
oriented 45 degrees away from the cardinal points of the 
compass. This is considered necessary so as to provide 
protection to southeast and southwest facing walls and roof 
areas.  

b. NATURAL GRADE BASE ELEVATION DETERMINATION. In 
determining the base elevation for use in calculating allowable 
building height, the natural existing grade shall be used to 
determine the “highest point of contact of the structure with the 
adjacent ground.”  

In cases where the existing elevation of the lot to the north is higher 
than the existing elevation of the lot on which development is 
proposed, the existing grade at the highest elevation point along 
the northerly lot line, measured at the location(s) with the shortest 
distance from the structure to the northerly lot line, shall be used as 
the “highest point of contact of the structure with the adjacent 
ground”. 

c. SHADOW DIAGRAMS.  
i.  In order to obtain an exemption based on SBMC 

§28.11.030.E, the applicant must submit an acceptable 
shadow diagram including the following information:  
(1)  A true north arrow;  
(2)  Topographical features of the proposed site and any 

adjacent northerly lots, and existing improvements 
thereon;  



3 
 

(3)  Plan view and exterior elevation view of the proposed 
structure showing the location of all northerly property 
lines on both;  

(4)  Diagrams of the shadows cast at 9:00 a.m., Noon, and 
3:00 p.m. Pacific Standard Time on December 21 by 
the portion of the structure being considered for an 
exemption.  

(5)  Any other information deemed necessary by the 
Community Development Director.  

ii.  The shadow diagram may be included on the site plan or 
may be a separate diagram.  

iii.  The Community Development Director shall provide a 
sample shadow diagram as a part of the informational 
materials prepared to implement SBMC Chapter 28.11.  

4. Modification of Solar Access Height Limitations 
a. MUNICIPAL CODE REFERENCE.  Santa Barbara Municipal 

Code §28.92.110.A.4 allows modification of the solar access 
height limitations to be granted where the modification is 
necessary to prevent an unreasonable restriction. 

b. CRITERIA FOR DETERMINATION OF UNREASONABLE 
RESTRICTION. 
i. MAINTAINING ALLOWABLE NUMBER OF DWELLING 

UNITS.  In the event that the solar access height 
limitations result in a reduction in the otherwise allowable 
number of dwelling units in a residential structure or 
development, including density bonus, such situation may 
be considered an unreasonable restriction if all of the 
following criteria apply: 
(1) Every feasible effort has been made for the proposed  

development or structure to comply with the solar 
access height limitations established by SBMC 
§28.11.020, and the development or structure is 
determined to be unable to achieve the otherwise 
allowable number of dwelling units without violating 
such height limitations; and 

(2) The proposed infringement on solar access is the 
minimum necessary to permit the allowable number 
of units on the property. 

Applicants desiring a modification on the basis of such 
criteria shall provide documentation demonstrating that the 
above criteria are met and demonstrating the reason that 
the non-complying portion of the structure or development 



4 
 

cannot be relocated or redesigned so as to be in 
compliance.  

ii.  AFFORDABLE HOUSING. A development which includes 
25% or more dwelling units meeting the affordability criteria 
of the Community Development Department and which is 
subject to City monitoring of rent or resale price levels for a 
minimum of ten years shall receive special consideration in 
the granting of modifications of the solar access height 
limitations. If compliance with such limitations will result in 
significant additional costs for the construction phase of 
development, this additional cost may be considered an 
unreasonable restriction.  
An applicant desiring modification based on this criterium 
shall provide adequate documentation showing the extent of 
the extra costs associated with compliance and 
demonstrating that the proposed infringement on solar 
access is the minimum necessary to prevent significant extra 
construction costs. 

CONSIDERATION OF SECOND STORY ADDITIONS. In cases of 
second story additions to dwellings in residential zones other 
than R-3 and R-4, a modification of the solar access height 
limitations may be granted on the basis of an unreasonable 
restriction such that the height limitation would be the same 
as that specified for R-3 and R-4 zones by SBMC Section 
28.11.020 providing that all of the following criteria apply:  
(1)  All portions of the proposed addition which will violate 

the solar access height limitations for zones other 
than R-3 and R-4, except for roof overhangs of up to 
two (2) feet, are entirely within the perimeter of a 
structure which was constructed or was issued a 
building permit prior to the effective date of the 
ordinance first enacting SBMC Chapter 28.11.  

(2)  The horizontal dimensions of the proposed addition, 
excluding roof overhangs, as measured parallel to all 
northerly lot lines of the lot upon which it is proposed, 
do not exceed twenty five (25) feet, except that 
portions of the addition that comply with the solar 
access height limitations for zones other than R-3 and 
R-4 shall be exempt from the provisions of this 
sentence.  

(3)  All portions of the addition which violate the solar 
access height limitations for zones other than R-3 and 
R-4 have been designed so as to cast no shadow at 
9:00 a.m., Noon, and 3:00 p.m. PST on December 21 



5 
 

on any solar collector in existence, or for which a 
building permit has been issued. For the purposes of 
this subsection, a solar collector shall be any device 
which is designed primarily to collect solar energy and 
which contains an area of twenty four (24) square feet 
or more.  

(4)  The amount of direct sunlight on all south facing 
windows on any adjacent lot at 9:00 a.m., Noon, and 
at 3:00 p.m. PST on December 21 following 
construction of the proposed addition will be greater 
than or equal to the amount of such sunlight in the 
event that the maximum addition in compliance with 
the solar access height limitations were to be 
constructed. The effect of shade caused by 
vegetation shall not be a consideration in this 
determination. For the purposes of this subsection, 
south facing windows shall include any window in a 
dwelling which faces 45 degrees or less from true 
south and which separates heated from non-heated 
space.  

Applicants desiring a modification of the solar access height 
limitations based on these criteria shall provide adequate 
documentation, including but not limited to shadow diagrams 
as described in Section 3, Paragraph C above, 
demonstrating that these criteria are met.  

iv.  TWO AND THREE STORY STRUCTURES IN THE 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. A modification may be 
granted to applicants proposing to construct a two (2) or 
three (3) story structure on property zoned R-3 or R-4 and 
located in the Central Business District pursuant to SBMC 
§28.92.110.A.4 provided the following:  
(1)  The property has less than the required 60 feet of 

frontage on a public street;  
(2)  All portions of the structure which exceed the 

requirements of the solar access height limitations for 
zones R-3 and R-4 have been designed so as to cast 
no shadow at 9:00 a.m., Noon, and 3:00 p.m. PST on 
December 21 on any solar collector in existence, or 
for which a building permit has been issued. For the 
purposes of this subsection, a solar collector shall be 
any device which is designed primarily to collect solar 
energy and which contains an area of twenty four (24) 
square feet or more.  



6 
 

(3)  The amount of direct sunlight reaching all south facing 
windows of any structure on an adjacent lot at 9:00 
a.m., Noon, and at 3:00 p.m. PST on December 21 
following construction of the proposed third story will 
be greater than or equal to the amount of such 
sunlight in the event that the maximum development 
in compliance with the solar access height limitations 
were to be constructed. The effect of shade caused 
by vegetation shall not be a consideration in this 
determination. For the purposes of this subsection, 
south facing windows shall include any window in a 
dwelling which faces 45 degrees or less from true 
south and which separates heated from non-heated 
space.  

Applicants desiring a modification of the solar access height 
limitations based on these criteria shall provide adequate 
documentation acceptable to the Community Development 
Director, including but not limited to shadow diagrams as 
described in Section 3, Paragraph C above, demonstrating 
that these criteria are met.  
For the purposes of this Resolution, the Central Business 
District (CBD) shall be defined as the area bounded by 
Garden Street on the northeast, De La Vina Street on the 
southwest, Arrellaga Street to the northwest and U.S. 
Highway 101 to the southeast. 

5. Modification of Required Yards Setbacks to Promote the Use of 
Solar Energy  
a.  MUNICIPAL CODE REFERENCE. Santa Barbara Municipal Code 

Section §28.92.110.A.2 allows a modification of required yard 
setback size where the modification is consistent with the purposes 
and intent of the Zoning Ordinance (SBMC Title 28) and is 
necessary to:  
i.  Secure an appropriate improvement on a lot,  
ii.  Prevent unreasonable hardship, or  
iii.  Promote uniformity of improvement.  

b.  CRITERIA FOR MODIFICATIONS OF REQUIRED YARDS 
SETBACKS TO PROMOTE THE USE OF SOLAR ENERGY. The 
construction of a dwelling or a solar energy collection and/or 
storage device within a required yard setback may be considered 
an appropriate improvement on a lot and the basis for a 
modification of required yards setbacks as follows:  
i.  A modification may be granted for up to a 50% reduction in a 

required yard setback dimension for the purpose of locating 



7 
 

a dwelling to achieve better solar access, provided that all of 
the following criteria are met:  
(1)  The portion of the required yard setback that is 

reduced as a result of the modification will be added 
to the required yard setback space elsewhere on the 
lot; and  

(2)  The proposed structure is designed so as to utilize the 
solar energy provided by the improved solar access.  

Applicants for such modifications shall provide adequate 
documentation demonstrating that the above criteria are 
met.  

ii.  A modification for up to 50% reduction of a required yard 
setback dimension may be granted for the purpose of 
installing a solar energy collection and/or storage device, 
provided that all of the following criteria are met:  
(1)  The device is primarily for use in collecting and/or 

storing solar energy; and  
(2)  The device or structure will not provide additional 

habitable floor space.  
Applicants for such modifications shall provide adequate 
documentation demonstrating that the above criteria are 
met.  

iii.  In cases where construction is proposed on two adjacent lots 
at the same time, a zero lot line modification may be granted 
for the purposes of improving solar access. In such cases, a 
required interior setback may be eliminated so as to allow 
the joining of structures along a common lot line provided 
that all of the following criteria are met:  
(1)  Both structures are applied for and approved 

concurrently;  
(2)  The opposite required yards setbacks on both lots are 

increased by the amount eliminated such that there 
will be no increase in the buildable area on either lot; 
and  

(3)  The applicant demonstrates the advantages gained 
for improved solar access.  

c.  POLICY STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF SOLAR ENERGY. As a 
part of the City's support for the use of solar energy, applications for 
such modifications shall be given special consideration and 
regarded favorably as long as the modifications would not 



8 
 

substantially impair other purposes and intents of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  

 



Agenda Item No.  7 
 

File Code No.  540.06 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance Of Water Meter Agreement And Easement For 3885 

State Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Approving an Agreement for Access to Water Meters and Sub-meters, 
and Accepting a Grant of Easement for 3885 State Street. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
City water meters are typically installed in the public right of way. In some 
circumstances, however, space constraints in the public right of way make it necessary 
to install water sub-meters on private property. These meters are City-owned and 
maintained. In order to ensure future access for City personnel to install, read, repair, 
maintain, replace, and remove the City water meters when necessary, an easement 
agreement granting access to the City is needed. The proposed Resolution will 
demonstrate acceptance by the City of the easement and provide for its recordation in 
the Official Records of Santa Barbara County. The documents outline the scope of City 
ownership and clearly define that the only City infrastructure on the private property is 
the water meter boxes, water meters, and their shut-off valves. 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager/DH/cmw 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



1 

RESOLUTION OF ACCEPTANCE NO. _______ 
 

   A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR 
ACCESS TO WATER METERS AND SUB-METERS, AND 
ACCEPTING A GRANT OF EASEMENT FOR 3885 STATE 
STREET 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City has granted approval for the installation of City water meters on 
private property located at 3885 State Street (APN 051-022-038); and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to delineate the scope of City ownership and clearly define 
that the only City infrastructure on the private property is the water meters and their 
meter boxes and shut-off valves. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. In accordance with California Government Code Section 27281, the City of 
Santa Barbara hereby accepts those certain easements for public water meters and all 
related purposes described in the Agreement for Access to Water Meters and Sub-Meters 
and Grant of Easement, by and between the City of Santa Barbara, a municipal 
corporation, and State Street Property, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. 
  
SECTION 2.  The City of Santa Barbara hereby approves, and the Public Works Director 
is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement for Access to Water Meters and Sub-
Meters and Grant of Easement, by and between the City of Santa Barbara and State 
Street Property, LLC. 
 
SECTION 3. The City of Santa Barbara hereby consents to the recordation of the 
Agreement for Access to Water Meters and Sub-Meters and Grant of Easement by the 
City Clerk, or by designated City staff, in the Official Records of the County of Santa 
Barbara, State of California. 

 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Design Of Upper State Street Wet Weather Sewer 

Capacity Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 

contract with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., in the amount of $242,081 for 
design services of the State Street Sewer Improvements Project, and authorize 
the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $24,208 for extra 
services of Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work; and 
 

B. Approve and increase in appropriations Wastewater Fund and Wastewater Capital 
Fund in the amount of $266,289, funded from Wastewater Fund reserves, and 
authorize the transfer of such funds from the Wastewater Fund to the Wastewater 
Capital Fund to cover the cost of design for the Upper State Street Sewer Project. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The 2012 Wastewater Collection System Master Plan identified a portion of the 
collection system along State Street from La Cumbre Road to Hitchcock Way as 
potentially subject to overloading.  The potential overloading is not due to development; 
rather, it is one of the few locations in the City without that may not have adequate 
capacity under certain conditions.  In this case, potential overloading may occur during 
wet weather peak flows. This was identified in 2014 with the development of the 
Wastewater Collection System Hydraulic Model.  
 
Scope 
 
Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. (Stantec) will be identifying several options to relieve  
potential overloading of the collection system due to wet weather peak flows.  The most 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design Of Upper State Street Wet Weather Sewer Capacity Project 
November 15, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

cost effective option that also minimizes environmental and construction impacts will be 
selected, and plans and specification will be developed so that a construction contract 
may be awarded in June 2017.   The project may include work in the street right of way 
and/or under Arroyo Burro Creek. 
 
Design Phase Consultant Engineering Services 
 
A Request for Proposals process was undertaken for the selection of the design 
consultant.  Stantec was selected based on their experience in this type of work.  Staff 
recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with 
Stantec, in the amount of $242,081 for design and $24,208 for potential extra services, 
for a total amount of $266,289. 
 
Community Outreach 
 
This area of upper State Street is distinguished by a mixture of many businesses and 
residential properties and is characterized by heavy traffic at times. Once the project is 
defined and the environmental review process has begun, a public outreach plan will be 
developed and implemented to make these businesses and residents aware of the 
implementation of the project.  
 
Funding 
 
On May 24, 2016, staff presented the Wastewater Collection System Annual report to 
Council and identified this project as a candidate to utilize the approximately $1 million 
surplus from the Fiscal Year 2016 budget. Staff recommends that Council approve the 
appropriation of $266,289 from Wastewater Fund reserves, and transfer such funds to 
the Wastewater Capital Fund to design the Project.  
 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Design (by Contract) $266,289 

Other Design Costs - City Engineering staff  $56,000 

Subtotal $322,289 
 

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $880,000 
Estimated Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract or 
City) 

$63,233 

Estimated Other Construction Costs (testing, etc.) $10,000 

Subtotal $953,233 
 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,275,522 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design Of Upper State Street Wet Weather Sewer Capacity Project 
November 15, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

 
A copy of the contract is available for public review at the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/TE/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  9 
File Code No.  120.02 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Cancellation Of Certain Council Meetings In 2017 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council cancel the regular Council Meetings on the following dates:  January 3, 
January 17, February 21, April 4, May 30, July 4, August 22, August 29, September 5, 
November 7, November 28, December 19, and December 26, 2017. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year we review the calendar for the regular City Council Meeting dates.   
 
The Council meeting schedule has been established based on cancelling the Council 
meetings on the Tuesdays following a holiday, election day, and providing for a summer 
and winter break.  Council canceled these same meetings in 2016.   
 
We are now proposing the cancellation of meetings for the next year. 
 
Using this criteria, the following meetings would be cancelled: 
  

• Tuesday, January 3, 2017 (Tuesday after New Year’s Day); 
• Tuesday, January 17, 2017 (Tuesday after Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday); 
• Tuesday, February 21, 2017 (Tuesday after Presidents Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, April 4, 2017 (Tuesday after Cesar Chavez Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, May 30, 2017 (Tuesday after Memorial Day Holiday); 
• Tuesday, July 4, 2017 (July 4th Holiday); 
• Tuesday, August 22, 2017 (Summer Break); 
• Tuesday, August 29, 2017 (Summer Break); 
• Tuesday, September 5, 2017 (Tuesday after Labor Day Holiday);  
• Tuesday, November 7, 2017 (Election Day); 
• Tuesday, November 28, 2017 (Tuesday after Thanksgiving Holiday);  
• Tuesday, December 19, 2017 (Winter Break); and 
• Tuesday, December 26, 2017 (Christmas Day Holiday) 



Council Agenda Report 
Cancellation of Certain Council Meetings in 2017 
November 15, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  11 

File Code No.  380.01  
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Update Of Southern California Edison Resiliency Plan And The Santa 

Barbara Downtown Reliability Project  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive and comment on a presentation by Southern California Edison on 
their resiliency plan, including the Downtown Santa Barbara Reliability Project 
component. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
That Southern California Edison (SCE) Regional Manager of Local Public Affairs will 
make a presentation to Council on their area resiliency plan, as well as the Santa 
Barbara Downtown Reliability Project (Project). Upgrading to newer equipment will 
modernize the power grid, make it more reliable, and minimize the duration of outages.  
During the Project, some customers may experience maintenance outages and traffic 
impacts.  SCE will communicate with affected customers in advance so they can make 
appropriate arrangements.   
 
The work involves several separate projects on different circuits in the City’s downtown 
area to provide safe and reliable service to City customers.  These improvements 
include underground re-cabling, installing new vaults and switches, and upgrades at 
multiple substations in the City. 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Grisanti, Administrator's Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 
 

File Code No.  530.03 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Planning, Public Works Department 
 Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Permitting The Temporary Beachway Bridge Over Mission Creek 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council direct staff to work with the California Coastal Commission staff to permit 
the Beachway Bridge initially installed as temporary access over Mission Creek to 
remain after completion of the Cabrillo Bridge Replacement Project as a functional 
improvement to the multi-purpose path. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Public Works is currently in the final stage of construction to replace the Cabrillo 
Boulevard Bridge over Mission Creek. The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement 
Project (Project) included three stages of construction over two years to allow for 
continued vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle circulation in the Waterfront. As a part of 
the phasing, a temporary Beachway Bridge was constructed south/downstream of the 
Project to provide continued pedestrian and cyclist circulation via the multi-purpose path 
known as the Beachway.  The temporary pedestrian bridge also supports three utility 
lines during construction.  These utility lines will be moved from the temporary bridge 
and relocated back onto Cabrillo Bridge upon completion of construction.  Attachment 1 
shows the Project area and the temporary Beachway Bridge alignment. Attachment 2 
includes a photograph of the site. 
 
The south side of Cabrillo Boulevard and adjacent Stearns Wharf have the highest 
pedestrian and cyclist volumes in the Waterfront. Additionally, surries and other rented 
non-motorized vehicles, rollerbladers, and joggers share the Beachway. The proposed 
alignment of the Beachway via the temporary bridge would provide for a greater 
separation between pedestrians and faster moving Beachway users, increasing the 
capacity of all users.  The temporary bridge is located on park property and is 
compatible with and accessory to the purpose for which the park was dedicated. 



Council Agenda Report 
Permitting The Temporary Beachway Bridge Over Mission Creek 
November 15, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 
 
Because of these benefits, during the final design stages of the Project, Public Works 
staff vetted the possibility of making the temporary Beachway Bridge permanent with 
the Planning Commission. Planning Commission agreed with this approach, but the 
California Coastal Commission (CCC) staff was not supportive because of their 
guidance policy on sea level rise.   
 
Now that the temporary Beachway Bridge is in place, CCC staff can more readily see 
the coastal recreation and access benefits of the bridge.  CCC is now open to reviewing 
a Coastal Development Permit amendment to allow the bridge to remain in place until 
such time that sea level rise or creek bank/coastal erosion requires the bridge to be 
removed. When the useful life of the bridge ends, the Beachway alignment would revert 
to the new Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge (previous alignment).  
 
Staff has received some positive feedback from the community about the bridge, as well 
as confusion as to why it needs to be removed. Staff is recommending that Council 
direct staff to pursue a Coastal Development Permit amendment to allow the temporary 
bridge to remain. 
 
Budget Considerations 
 
The Project construction contract includes the construction and removal of the 
temporary bridge in the bid amount of approximately $700,000. Public Works staff have 
informally discussed with the contractor their willingness to leave the temporary bridge 
in place without additional cost to the City, in exchange for relieving the Contractor of 
the costs to remove the bridge and restore the area to its original condition. If and when 
the temporary bridge needs to be removed it will be done at the City’s expense. Public 
Works staff estimate the cost of bridge removal, constructing a new Beachway 
connection, and associated restoration work to be approximately $100,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project Area 
 2.  Photograph of Project Site 
 
PREPARED BY: Robert J. Dayton, Principal Transportation Planner/mj 
 Adam Hendel, Principal Civil Engineer 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



TE
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

P
E

D
E

S
TR

IA
N

B
R

ID
G

E

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
E

A
C

H
W

A
Y

B
R

ID
G

E

N
O

TE
:N

O
T

A
S

-
B

U
IL

T
LA

Y
O

U
T

O
F

TE
M

P
O

R
A

R
Y

P
A

TH

A
TT

A
C

H
M

E
N

T 
1



A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

2

ahendel
Text Box
PHOTO TAKEN 10/31/2016

ahendel
Polygon

ahendel
Text Box
TEMPORARY PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE

ahendel
Callout
BEACHWAY

ahendel
Polygon

ahendel
Text Box
APPROVED BEACHWAY BRIDGE



Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No.  160.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With City Attorney – Anticipated Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider initiating litigation pursuant to subsection 
(d)(4) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed 
(two potential cases). 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  14 

File Code No.  160.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference With City Attorney – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(d)(1) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is Jennifer McKenzie v. City of Santa Barbara, et al., SBSC Case 
#16CV03008. 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 





Agenda Item No.  16 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 15, 2016 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Interviews of applicants for various positions on City Advisory Groups are to be held on 
October 25, 2016, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m.  Applicants will also have the option to 
be interviewed on November 1, 2016, at an estimated time of 4:00 p.m. and November 15, 
2016, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
For the current 67 vacancies, 75 individuals submitted 89 applications.  A list of eligible 
applicants and pertinent information about the City Advisory Groups is attached to this 
report. 
 
Applicants have been notified that to be considered for appointment they must be 
interviewed.  Applicants have been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute verbal presentation, 
in response to a set of questions specific to the group for which they are applying.  
Applicants applying to more than one advisory group may have up to 5 minutes for their 
presentation. 
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place on December 6, 2016. 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Deborah L. Applegate, Deputy City Clerk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 

1 
Annual Recruitment 2016 

 ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
ANNUAL RECRUITMENT 2016 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Three terms:  December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:  Residents of the City or a full-time employee of an entity doing business within the City 

during their term of office, demonstrates an interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability 
and access. 

• Representatives must be from the following categories: 
 Two members must be from the Disability Community. 
 One representative from the Public at Large. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Representatives of the 
Disability Community (2) 

Nick Koonce*  1) Access Advisory 
2) Building & Fire Code of 

Appeals 
 

Karen Johnson* 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years   

Representative of the 
Public at Large (1) 

Karen Johnson* 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years   

Nick Koonce*   1)      Access Advisory 
2)     Building & Fire Code of  
        Appeals 

 

Janice Rodriguez   
 

Barbara Silver 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years 
 

 
*Eligible for more than one category.                        
 



2     

 
AIRPORT COMMISSION 

 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Two terms:  December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Category:  Representatives must be from the following categories: 

 Qualified elector of the City.  
 Qualified elector of the City or County of Santa Barbara. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City  (1 or 2)  

Karen Kahn* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Dennis Houghton*    

Kathryn A. McGill* 
(Kathy) 

 1) Creeks Advisory Council 
2) Airport Commission 
3) Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Qualified Elector of 
the County of Santa 
Barbara (0 or 1) 

Craig Arcuri 
6/25/2013 – 12/31/2016 

2 years, 6 months 
  

Paul Bowen    

Dennis Houghton*    

Karen Kahn* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Kathryn A. McGill* 
(Kathy) 

 1)      Creeks Advisory Council 
2)      Airport Commission 
3)      Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

*Eligible for more than one category 



3     

 
ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 

 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 December 31, 2020 (Licensed Architect – City or County) 
 December 31, 2020 (Licensed Architect – City) 
 December 31, 2020 (Professional Qualifications – City) 

• Qualifications/Category:   
 Qualified elector of the City or County of Santa Barbara and possess professional experience in related 
fields, including, but not limited to landscape architecture, building design, structural engineering, or industrial 
design.  Representative must be from the following categories: 
 Qualified Elector and Licensed Architect (2) 
 Qualified Elector and Possess Professional Qualifications (1) 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City and Licensed 
Architect (2 or 3)  

Wm. Howard Wittausch* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Qualified Elector and 
Possess Professional 
Qualifications (0 or 1)  

David R. Watkins    

Wm. Howard Wittausch* 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

*Eligible for more than one category 
 
 



4     

 
BUILDING AND FIRE CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

• Vacancy:  Open  (The Municipal Code does not specify a maximum number of members on the appeals board).   
• Term Expiration:   

 Term:  Open 
• Qualifications/Category:  Resident of the City or adjoining unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County.  

Appointee shall demonstrate knowledge and expertise in specialty areas governed by the construction and fire 
codes of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
Adjoining 
Unincorporated Areas of 
Santa Barbara County 
(Open) 

Tariq R. Kadri    

Nick Koonce  1) Access Advisory Committee 
2) Building and Fire Code of 

Appeals 
 

Paul Spieler    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5     

 
CENTRAL COAST COMMISSION FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration: 

 June 30, 2020 
• Qualifications/Category:   

 Resident of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City  
(1)  

Jim D. Machen 
 1) Downtown Parking Committee 

2) Fire & Police Pension 
Commission 

3) Central Coast Commission For 
Senior Citizens 

 

 
 

 
 
 



6     

 
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration: 

 December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Must be a qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government, and for one year after 

ceasing to be a member, shall not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of the 
City (1) 

Desmond O’Neill 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years 
1) Parks & Recreation Commission 
2) Civil Service Commission  

 
 
 



7     

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

• Six vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Latino Community) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Youth Oriented Services) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Downtown Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Lower Westside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Housing Authority) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Disabled Community) 

• Must be residents or employees of the designated organizations, but need not be qualified electors of the City. Must 
represent one of the specified categories or organizations.   

• One representative from each of the following categories: 
 Lower Westside 

Neighborhood 
 Downtown Neighborhood 

 Latino Community 
 Housing Authority 

  Youth Oriented Services 
 Disabled Community 

 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 
Please see next page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8     

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Lower Westside 
Neighborhood (1) 

None    

Latino Community (1) Joanna Romo*    

Raphael Vazquez*  1)  Fire & Police Pension Commission 
2) Sister Cities 
3) Community Development & Human 

Services Committee 

 

Youth Oriented Services (1) Ken Gates    

Patricia Bermudez 
Mosqueda 

   

Joanna Romo*    

Ashley Salvador*    

Raphael Vazquez*  1)       Fire & Police Pension Commission 
                2)       Sister Cities 

3)       Community Development & Human 
          Services Committee 

 

Downtown Neighborhood (1) Charles W. Flacks    

Kate Lee    

Sonia Rosenbaum    

Ashley Salvador*    

Hector Sanchez  Community Development & Human Services 
Committee 
Neighborhood Advisory Council 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Housing Authority (1) Antonia (Tonie) 
Hood 

   

Disabled Community (1) Ashley Salvador*    

*Eligible for more than one category.                        



9     

 
CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 December 31, 2019 (Hotel/Lodging Industry – City) 
 December 31, 2019 (Resident of City or County) 

• Qualifications/Category: 
 Member must be a resident of the City or County of Santa Barbara and shall have some experience in 

ocean use, business, environmental issues and provide community-at-large representation.  
 One member must represent the Hotel/Lodging Industry. 
 One member may be a resident of the City or County of Santa Barbara. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Representative of the 
Hotel/Lodging Industry 
(1) 

Paul Bullock 
6/30/2009 – 12/31/2016 

7 years, 6 months 
  

Resident of the City or 
County of Santa 
Barbara (1) 

Katie Klein    

Kristie A. Klose    

Kathryn A. McGill 
(Kathy) 

 1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Airport Commission 
3) Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Jack Reed    

Shirin Tolle  1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Harbor Commission  

Whitney Wilkinson    



10     

 
DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 

 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:  

 Three terms:  December 31, 2019 
• Qualifications/Category:   

 Appointee shall demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown parking issues and must be a 
resident of the City or County. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City 
 (2 - 3) Robert Janeway    

Matt LaBrie 
12/16/2008 – 12 31/2016 

8 years 
  

Jim D. Machen  1)  Downtown Parking 
Committee 

2) Fire & Police Pension 
Commission 

3) Central Coast Commission 
For Senior Citizens 

 

James F. Scafide    

Kate Schwab 
12/17/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years 
  

John (Jack) Ucciferri    

Resident of the County 
of Santa Barbara (0-1) Gabriella Forrester    

 
 
 
 



11     

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 One term expires December 31, 2017 (Active/Retired Police Officer) 
 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Qualified Elector) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Qualified Elector) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Retired Firefighter) 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Two qualified electors* of the City who are not an active fire fighters or police officers. 
 One active or retired police officer who is a member of the Fire and Police Pension System who need not 

be a resident or elector of the City. 
 One retired firefighter. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Gabe Dominocielo 12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 
4 years 

  

Jim D. Machen  1) Downtown Parking 
2) Fire and Police Pension Commission 
3) Central Coast Commission For Senior Citizens 

 

Raphael Vazquez  1) Fire and Police Pension Commission 
2) Sister Cities 
3) Community Development & Human Services 

Committee 

 

Active or Retired 
Police Officer Who is 
a Member of the Fire 
and Police Pension 
System (1) 

None   . 

Retired Firefighter (1) None    

 



12     

HARBOR COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 December 31, 2017. 
 December 31, 2020  

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Qualified elector* of the City. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2) 

Jeff Escola   
 

Amy Franco  1) Harbor Commission 
2) Rental Housing Mediation Board   

William Spicer 6/30/2009 – 12/31/2016 
7 years, 6 months 

  

Shirin Tolle  1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Harbor Commission  

 



13     

 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 Two terms:  December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Categories:  One member shall be a qualified elector of the City (Public at Large) and one member 

may be a non-resident (Public at Large).    
 Members must be a qualified electors of the City or County of Santa Barbara and demonstrate knowledge 

of the history and architecture of the City. 
 One member must be a licensed architect. 
 One member must be a Professional Architectural Historian. 

 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Architect 
(1) 
 

None    

Professional 
Architectural 
Historian (1) 

None    

 
 
 
 
 



14     

 
LIBRARY BOARD 

 

• One vacancy. 
• Term Expiration: 

 December 31, 2020 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Member must be a Qualified Elector* of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector  (1) Susan C. Kinnevy  1) Sister Cities Board 
2) Library Board 
3) Rental Housing 

Mediation Board 

 

Susette H.H.C. Naylor 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Kathleen Rust    

 
 
 



15     

LIVING WAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 June 30, 2020 (Employee of a Local Non-Profit Entity) 
 June 30, 2020 (Nominee of the Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce or Santa Barbara Downtown 

Organization) 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 One member of the Committee shall be an employee of a local non-profit. 
 One member of the Committee shall be a nominee of the Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce 

or Santa Barbara Downtown Organization. 
 

 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Employee of a Local Non-Profit 
Entity (1) 

Adriana Marroquin    

Nominee of the Santa Barbara 
Chamber of Commerce or Santa 
Barbara Downtown Organization. 
(1) 

Kenneth Oplinger 12/17/2013 – 6/30/2016 

3 years 

  



16     

 
MEASURE P COMMITTEE 

 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Drug Abuse, Treatment & Prevention Counselor) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Resident of the City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Criminal Defense Attorney) 
 Two terms expire December 31, 2020 (Civil Liberties Advocate) 

 
• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be representatives of the following categories: 

 Criminal Defense Attorney  Resident of the City 
 Civil Liberties Advocate (2)  Drug Abuse, Treatment & Prevention 

Counselor 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Criminal Defense Attorney (1) None    

Resident of the City (1) None    

Civil Liberties Advocate (2) None    

Drug Abuse, Treatment & 
Prevention Counselor (1) 

None    

 
 
 



17     

 
NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 

 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2017 (Lower Eastside) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Eastside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Public at Large) 
 Two terms expires December 31, 2020 (Public at Large) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Lower Westside Neighborhood) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (West Downtown Neighborhood) 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Representatives must be from the following categories: 
 Public at Large - must be 

residents of the City but 
need not be qualified 
electors* of the City (3) 

 Eastside Neighborhood 

 Lower Westside 
          Neighborhood 
 Lower Eastside 

                Neighborhood 
 
 

 West Downtown                                    
Neighborhood 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

(Cont’d) 
Please see next page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18     

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Public at Large (3) Sally Foxen* 3/01/2011 – 12/31/2016 
4 years, 9 months 

  

May O’Mahoney*    

Eve Lois Sanford*    

Hector Sanchez*  Community Development & Human Services 
Committee 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 
Neighborhood Advisory Council 

 

Lower Westside 
Neighborhood 
Representative (1) 

Sally Foxen* 3/01/2011 – 12/31/2016 
4 years, 9 months 

  

West Downtown 
Neighborhood (1) 

May O’Mahoney*    

Eve Lois Sanford*    

Hector Sanchez*  Community Development & Human Services 
Committee 
Rental Housing Mediation Board 
Neighborhood Advisory Council 

 

Eastside 
Neighborhood (1) 

None    

Lower Eastside (1) None    

*Eligible for more than one category. 
 



19     

 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

• Three vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 
 Two terms expire December 31, 2020 

• Qualifications/Categories: 
 Qualified electors of the City.  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Elector of the 
City (3) 

John Abrami    

Tara Armbruster    

Nichol Clark 6/24/2014 – 12/31/2016 
2 years, 6 months 

  

Andria Martinez Cohen 6/28/2016 – 12/31/2016 
6 months 

  

Kathryn A. McGill (Kathy)  1) Creeks Advisory Committee 
2) Airport Commission 
3) Parks & Recreation Commission 

 

Desmond O’Neill  1) Parks & Recreation Commission 
2) Civil Service Commission  

Erik Thorlaksson   
 

 
 
 
 



20     

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:  

 Two terms expire December 31, 2020. 
• Qualifications/Categories:  

 Qualified Elector* of the City 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City (2) 

Robert Allan    

Sheila Lodge 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years 
  

Gregory Mohr    

June Pujo 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years 
  

Lesley Wiscomb    
 



21     

 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION BOARD 
 

• Eight vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires December 31, 2018 (Landlord – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Homeowner – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Landlord – County) 
 One term expires December 31, 2019 (Tenant – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Landlord – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Homeowner – City or County) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Homeowner – City) 
 One term expires December 31, 2020 (Tenant – City) 
 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be residents of the City or County of Santa Barbara.  The majority of 
members must be residents of the City of Santa Barbara.  Non-City resident members must reside in a jurisdiction 
which contracts with the Rental Housing Mediation Program for services. 
Representatives must be from the following categories: 

 Two Tenants (City or County)   
Tenants must be:   

(1)  renting/leasing a dwelling, and 
(2) have no ownership of residential properties. 

 Three Landlords (City or County) 
 Three Homeowners (City or County)   
   

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
  

Please see next page. 
 (Cont’d) 



22     

 
RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION BOARD 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Tenant - City or County 
(2) 

Amy Franco  1) Harbor Commission 
2) Rental Housing Mediation Board  

Rigoberto Gutierrez    

Susan C. Kinnevy  1) Sister Cities 
        2)     Library Board 

3) Rental Housing Mediation Board 
 

Hector Sanchez  Community Development & Human 
Services Committee 
Neighborhood Advisory  
Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Landlord – City or 
County (3) 

Richard Axilrod 
12/11/2012 – 12/31/2016 

4 years   

Homeowner – City or 
County (3) 

Dan Collie    

Justin Dullum 
12/16/2008 – 12/31/2016 

8 years 
  

 
 



23     

 
SANTA BARBARA YOUTH COUNCIL 

• Five vacancies. 
• Term Expirations: 

 One term expires June 30, 2017 (Santa Barbara High School) 
 One term expires June 30, 2018 (Local Private High School) 
 One term expires June 30, 2018 (Dos Pueblos High School) 
 Two terms expire June 30, 2018 (Local Alternative, Community, or Continuation High School) 

• Qualifications/Categories:  Members must be between the ages of 13-19 years and may be from the City or 
County.  Members must be from the following categories: 
 One member from Santa Barbara High School 
 One member from a Local Private High School 
 One member from Dos Pueblos High School 
 Two members from Local Alternative, Community, or Continuation High 

School 

 

                       *Applicants must appear for an interview before the Santa Barbara Youth Council and City Council. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years 

Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Santa Barbara High 
School (1) 

Diego Perez    

Local Private High 
School (1) 

Kyle Aitcheson    

Dos Pueblos High 
School (1) 

Michelle Qin    

Local Alternative, 
Community, or 
Continuation High 
School (2) 

Daniel Reyes    
Joseph Calzada    



24     

 
SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN BOARD 

 

 One vacancy. 
 June 30, 2020. 
 Member shall reside within Santa Barbara County and shall be a licensed landscape architect.  Member shall 

poses professional qualifications in fields related to architecture, including, but not limited to, building design, 
structural engineering, industrial design, or landscape contracting.   

 Member may serve on the Architectural Board of Review or the Historic Landmarks Commission. 
 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Landscape 
Architect (1) 

None    

 



25     

 
SISTER CITIES COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire December 31, 2020. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Representatives must be residents of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

Susan C. Kinnevy  1) Sister Cities Committee 
2) Library Board 
3) Rental Housing Mediation Board 

 

Margaret Saavedra    

Raphael Vazquez  1) Fire & Police Commission 
2) Sister Cities 
3) Community Development & 

Human Services Committee 

 

 
 

 



26     

 
TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION COMMITTEE 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire December 31, 2020. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Members must be residents of the City or County of Santa Barbara.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

David Hodges    

 
 



27     

 
WATER COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Term Expirations:   

 Two terms expire December 31, 2019. 
• Qualifications/Categories: 

 Members must be Qualified Electors* of the City.  
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) 
 

Monty Cole    

Dave Davis 
6/23/2015 – 12/31/2016 

1 year, 6 months 
  

Michael Kielborn 
6/25/2013 – 12/31/2016 

3 years, 6 months 
  

 


	1.DOC
	2.PDF
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.PDF
	18.PDF
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.PDF
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	Mayor
	November 15, 2016
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



